	1	BY-LAWS OF		
	2	ASSOCIATION OF BLACK ATTORNEYS		
	8	OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY		
	4			
	5	ARTICLE I		
	6	NAME AND PLACE OF BUSINESS		
	7 Sect	ion 1. NAME. The name of this Association, hereinafter referred to as		
	8 as s	Association, shall be Association of Black Attorneys of San Diego County, tated in the Constitution.		
	9 Sect	ion 2. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. The principal office for the transaction of		
1	0 busin	o, State of California, as may be fixed from time to time by the state of the country of San		
1	1 Comm	ittee.		
. 1	2	ARTICLE II		
1	3	CLASSES OF MEMBERSHIP		
14	4			
18	Secti Supre	Section 1. REGULAR. Any Black person licensed to practice law by the Supreme Court of the State of California, who is a member in good standing of the California State Bar Association, and who is a member in good standing of		
16	honor	the California State Bar Association, and who is neither an associate or honorary member shall be a regular member.		
17	li Section	on 2. ASSOCIATION. Any Black person who is a member of a Bar and		
18	Distr	ict Court, is eligible to become a court in any State, or before a Federal		
19	requir	ring him to be a member of the Ct.		
20	associ	have all of the rights and privileges of regular members, except that ate members shall be ineligible to hold office or to vote.		
21	Section	on 3. STUDENT MEMBERSUID And David		
22	is eli	gible to become a student was school or has graduated from any law school		
23	of the	State Bar of California Student that requiring him to be a member		
24	to hol	eges of regular members, except that student members shall be ineligible d office or to vote.		
25		·		
26		ARTICLE III		
27		MEMBERSHIP DUES		
28	Section	1. FISCAL YEAR The fiscal year for H.		
29		so became sist of each year nereafter.		
80	Section	2. <u>DUES</u> . Annual dues are payable on or before March 25		

- A. Regular Member: \$25.00 per annum;
- B. Associate Member: \$15.00 per annum;
- C. Honorary Member: No dues; and
- D. Student Member: \$10.00 per annum.

Members three (3) months deliquent in dues may be dropped from the membership, but payment of dues to date shall entitle such person to reinstatement.

Section 3. Members in Military Service. Members who are in the military service of the United States shall be exempt from the payment of dues unless such service becomes a member's permanent avocation.

ARTICLE IV

MEETINGS

Section 1. Meetings of Members, Quorum. There shall be an annual meeting of the active members of the Association in the month of November of each year. Said meetings shall be held at such place in San Diego County at such time as ordered by the Executive Committee. Notice thereof shall be mailed to each active member at least ten (10) days in advance of such meeting. Special meetings of active members may be called at any time by the Executive Committee or by the President. The President shall call a special meeting promptly after receipt by him of a petition therefor signed by at least five (5) active members. Special meetings shall be held at such place in San Diego County as the call may designate. No business shall be transacted at any such special meetings except the business specified in the call. Notice of any such special meeting shall be mailed at least five (5) days before the date of such meeting and such notice shall specify the business to be transacted. The presence of at least four (4) of the active members of the Association shall be necessary to constitute a quorum at any meeting of the active members: but a smaller number may adjourn any such meeting to a subsequent time.

Section 2. Meetings of the Executive Committee. There shall be regular meetings of the Executive Committee at such times during each month as may be determined by said Committee. Said meetings shall be held at such place in San Diego County as ordered by the President. Notice thereof shall be mailed to each Committee member at least three (3) days in advance of each meeting. Special meetings of the Committee may be called at any time by the President or by a majority of all of the members of the Committee. Special meetings shall be held at such place in San Diego County as the call may designate. No business shall be transacted at any special meeting except the business specified in the call. Notice of any such special meeting shall be mailed at least two (2) days before the date of meeting and such notice shall specify the business to be transacted. Except as otherwise specified in these By-Laws, four (4) members of the Executive Committee shall constitute a quorum; but a smaller number may adjourn any meeting to a subsequenttime.

Section 3. Order of Business. At the annual meeting, the order of business shall be as follows:

2 В. 3 C. 4 D. 5 Ε. 6 F. 7 G. 8 9 10 11 12 13 Section 2. 14 of the Association. 15 Section 3. 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 Section 5. 23 24 25 26 Section 1.

29

80

31

82

- A. Report of President;
- B. Reports of Secretary and Treasurer;
- C. Reports of Standing Committees;
- D. Reports of Special Committees;
- E. Old Business;
- F. New Business; and
- Election of Officers.

ARTICLE V

OFFICERS

Section 1. <u>PRESIDENT</u>. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Association and meetins of the Executive Committee. He shall perform all duties ordinarily incident to his office, and shall recommend such action as he deems proper.

Section 2. <u>VICE-PRESIDENT</u>. The Vice-President shall act as President in the absence of the President, plan programs in cooperation with the Executive Committee and perform such other duties as may be assigned him by the President of the Association.

Section 3. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep minutes of meetings, send out notices; and shall be custodian of correspondence files. He shall act as administrative assistant to the President, shall assist committee chairmen in carrying out the work of committees and shall perform such other duties as may be assigned to him by the Executive Committeee. Upon being succeeded in office, he must turn over all Association records and correspondence to his successor.

Section 4. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall receive and disburse all funds of the Association, and shall deposit or invest its money in a manner approved by the Executive Committee. He shall submit at the annual meeting a report of monies received and expended, amounts due the Association and an estimate of the resources and expenditures for the ensuing year.

Section 5. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR SECRETARY. The Executive Committee may hire and assign duties to an Executive Director or Secretary of the Association, who shall be assigned duties and given compensation as the Executive Committee.

ARTICLE VI

NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF OFFICERS

Section 1. <u>NOMINATION</u>. The President shall appoint any four (4) members of the Association to be a nominating committee to select candidates for the offices and to report names of nominees to the Secretary not less than one (1) month before the next annual meeting of the Association. Nominations may also be made from the floor during the annual meeting by any member in good standings in the Association. However, upon adoption of the Association's Constitution and these By-Laws, the officers must be elected immediately from the floor.

Section 2. <u>ELECTION</u>. Officers shall be elected at the annual meeting by secret ballot of the members present at the meeting.

ARTICLE VII

COMMITTEES

Section 1. <u>DESIGNATION OF STANDING COMMITTEES</u>. There shall be Standing Committees on:

- A. Legislation;
- B. Ethics and Grievances;
- C. Unauthorized Practice;
- D. Courts;

- E. Legal Education;
- F. Legal Aid;
- G. Public Relations;
- H. Employment;
- I. Membership; and
- J. Entertainment.

Section 2. <u>JURISDICTION OF STANDING COMMITTEES</u>.

A. LEGISLATION COMMITTEE. This Committee shall report to the Association as frequently as possible on proposed legislation affecting the practice of law and to make recommendations and to support or oppose any pending Bills as directed by the Association. It may work with the State Bar Association on legislation related to the legal profession.

- B. ETHICS AND GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE. This Committee shall investigate all complaints of unprofessional conduct against members of the legal profession in this community and shall report with recommendations to the Executive Committee. It shall also be the duty of the Committee, without waiting for formal complaint, to investigate any case of alleged professional misconduct which may come to its attention, and report with recommendations to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee in grievance cases will take such action and institute such proceedings as it deems proper.
- C. <u>UNAUTHORIZED PRACTICE COMMITTEE</u>. This Committee shall keep itself informed of the problems involved in the field of unauthorized practice of law; shall seek to eliminate all unlawful practices by lay agencies and the participation of attorneys therein.
 - D. <u>COMMITTEE ON COURTS</u>. The President subject to the

 advice and consent of a majority of the entire Executive Committee, shall appoint a Committee on the judiciary, consisting of not more than seven (7) members. Each member of such Committee shall serve for a term of three (3) years, with the terms of such members staggered so that the terms of one-third (1/3) of the members (or if the number of members is not divisible by three, the terms of approxmately one-third (1/3) of such members) shall expire each year. No member shall be eligible for reappointment until one (1) year after the expiration of this term. The President shall be ex officio member of said Committee.

This Committee shall, by such means as it may consider suitable, subject to the approval of the Executive Committee, endeavor to secure the appointment or election of competent and properly qualified Black candidates for the United States Court of Appeal for the Ninth Circuit; for the United States District Court, Southern District of California; for the office of United States Attorney for the Southern District of California; for the offices of District Attorney of the County of San Diego; and for the office of City Attorney of the City of San Diego; and for any other office connected with the administration of justice in the Courts referred to above; the Supreme Court of California; the District Courts of Appeal, Fourth Appellate District; and any other Court convening in the County of San Diego. shall consider the nomination or appointment of any of said offices; oppose the nomination or appointment of unfit candidates. It may confer on the subject with other organizations; with nominating committees; and with such political groups as may have proper interest in the matter and; in the case of candidates for appointment to any such office, with the public official in whom the power of appointment is vested. It may whenever in its opinion occasion arises therefore, prepare a list or lists of persons properly qualified to hold any of the offices above mentioned, and may ascertain from members of the Association, or other members of the Bar, their choice or opinion as to the person so qualified.

The Committee shall from time to time report to the Executive Committee, or to the Association as required by the Executive Committee, and may make such recommendations as it may deem advisable.

- E. Committee on Continuing Legal Education. This Committee shall develop and carry out a program of continuing legal education of the Bar in order to aid members of the profession in keeping informed of new developments and to assist the beginning practitioner toward a better understanding of the practical aspects of practice. The Committee shall cooperate with the State Bar Association continuing legal education program in accomplishing these objectives.
- F. Committee on Legal Aid. This Committee shall have jurisdiction of all questions in the field of legal aid, with respect to (1) administration of justice as it affects poor people in the County of San Diego; (2) remedical measures intended to assist poor persons in the protection of their civil rights; (3) the establishment and efficient maintenance of legal aid organizations; and (4) cooperation with other agencies, both public and private, interested in these objectives.
- G. Committee on Public Relations. This Committee shall direct a planned, organized, positive and continuous program of public relations of an internal and external nature. Its objective is to promote and encourage widespread public interest for lawyers and the legal profession, and acquaint the public with the extent of

entertainment programs for members and their guests with approval of the Executive Committee. 8 EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE. This Committee shall have such duties ar responsibilities as determined by the President. Such dities shall, however, 9 relate to employment. 10 ARTICLE VIII 11 12 APPROPRIATIONS AND EXPENSES 13 Appropriations of Association funds for officer, committee or Section 1. other expenses shall be made by the Executive Committee. 15 Any liability incurred by an Association officer or committee in excess of the appropriation authorized by the Executive Committee shall be the 16 personal liability of the person or persons responsible for incurring or authorizing the same. 17 18 ARTICLE IX 19 PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE 20 All meetings of the Association of Black Attorneys shall be conducted in accordance with Roberts Rules of Order (except where otherwise designated in 22 these By-Laws) in keeping with democratic principles and traditions so that each member shall have an opportunity to be heard and present his views for the con-23 sideration of the members. 24 ARTICLES X 25 **PARLIAMENTARIAN** 26 Section 1. The President shall appoint a Parliamentarian. He shall hold office for a one (1) year term. 28 The Parliamentarian shall, when requested by the President or presiding officer at any regular or special meeting of the Executive Committee or of the membership of this Association, given such rulings of such issues as may be presented to him. 80 ARTICLES XI 81 AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS 82 By-Laws may be adopted, amended or rescinded by a majority vote of the members present and voting at any annual, regular or special meeting provided that notice of such a proposed change shall be given in writing to all

members one (1) week in advance of the meeting at which the vote is to be taken.

services offered to it by attorneys and the advisability of using such service The Committee shall utilize such means of communication as it deems advisable

tions for membership in the Association, and shall formulate and recommend plan for maintaining and increasing membership. It shall have the responsibility o

giving effect to such plans as are approved by the Executive Committee.

This Committee shall encourage applica-

This Committee shall plan and manage

2 3

to accomplish its purposes.

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE.

ENTERTAINMENT COMMITTEE.

Б

6 7

27

29